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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

X

MARIO WASHINGTON, individually and on ;
behalf all others similarly situated. : Case No.

Plaintiff, . CLASS ACTION

. COMPLAINT
- against -

MONSANTO COMPANY, a Delaware : JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
corporation; DOES 1-10, inclusive, :

Detendants.
e e e e e e mmmm X

COMPLAINT

Plaintitf, MARIO WASHINGTON, by and through his counsel, brings this Class Action
Complaint on bchalf of himself and all others similarly situated against Detendant. Monsanto
Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, *Monsanto™ or “Defendant™), regarding
the deceptive labeling, marketing, and sale of retail Roundup® “Garden Weeds” Weed & Grass
Killer products (“Roundup” or “Roundup Producis™) and alleges the following based upon

information, belief, and the investigation ol his counsel:

1. Defendant actively advertises and promotes its Roundup Products as targeting an
enzyme “found in plants but not in people or pets.” See, Exhibit A, annexed hercto. These

claims are false, misleading and deceptive.

2. The active ingredient in the Roundup Products at issue is glyphosate. Contrary to

Defendant’s claims, the enzyme that glyphosate targets is found in pcople and pets. Therefore,
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where Defendant advertises that the Roundup Products target an enzyme “not found in people or

pets,” such claim is objectively false and inherently misleading.

3. As such, Plaintiff brings this claim against Defendant individually and on behalf
of a class of all other similarly situated purchasers of the Roundup Products for violating New
York’s General Business Law §§ 349 and 350. Plaintiff seeks an order requiring Detendant to

pay compensatory damages and restitution to Plaintiff and Class members.

INTRODUCTION

4. Glyphosate, the active ingredient in Monsanto’s Roundup, is a biocide also

regarded as the most commonly used herbicide in the world.

5. Due to its prevalent use, glyphosate has contaminated the nation’s water supply and
many common food products. Some studies have reported glyphosate in more than 90% of the

human population.

6. Monsanto aggressively markets Roundup as safe for humans and animals, despite

recent studics indicating that glyphosate may be carcinogenic and affect human and animal

cardiovascular, endocrine, nervous, and reproductive systems.

7. Specifically, the label on many Roundup Products conspicucusly states,
“Glyphosate targets an enzyme found in plants but not in people or pets,” and Monsanto has used
this representation to build the Roundup brand and convince consumers that Roundup products do

not target or affect humans and animals.
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8. The representation that *“[g|lyphosate targets an enzyme found in plants but not in
people or pets” is false, deceptive, and misleading, because the enzyme targeted by the glyphosate

in Roundup, in fact, is found in pcople and pets.

9. No reasonable consumer seeing these representations would expect that Roundup
targets a bacterial enzyme that is found in humans and animals and that affects their immune

health.

10. By deceiving consumers about the nature and ctfects of Roundup, Monsanto is able

1o sell a greater volume of Roundup, and to command a higher price for Roundup.

11.  Consumers lack the scientific knowledge necessary to determine whether Roundup
does in fact target an enzyme found in plants but not in people or pets, or to assess the health

effects of Roundup in humans or animals.

12. Reasonable consumers must and do rely on Monsanto to report honestly
Roundup’s effects on humans and animals and whether the enzyme it targets is found in people

and pets.

13. Monsanto affirmatively states that the enzyme targeted by glyphosate is not found
in people and pets, and fails to disclose to consumers that the enzyme targeted by glyphosate, and

the shikimate pathway it is designed to inhibit, is found in people and pets.

14. Monsanto omits additional, material information that it knows, namely, that the
enzyme targeted by glyphosate is found in people and pets, specifically in the beneficial bacteria

upon which their gut and immune system rely.
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15. Monsanto intended for consumers, including consumers throughout the State of
New York, to rely on its representations, and reasonable consumers did so rely. As a result of its
false and mistcading labeling, and omission of fact, Monsanto was able to sell Roundup to the

general public of the State of New York and realize sizeable profits.

16. Monsanto’s false and misleading representations and omissions violate New

York’s General Business Law §§ 349 and 350.

17. Because Monsanto’s labeling and advertising of Roundup tend to mislead and are
materially deceptive about the true nature of the product, Plaintiff brings this deceptive advertising
case on behalf of the gencral public and seek cquitable relicf for the sale of Roundup Products in

the State of New York.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

18.  The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff's class claims pursuant
to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d) because the combined claims of the proposed Class Members exceed
$5.000,000 and becausc Dclendant is a citizen of a different state than Plaintiff and most

Class Members.

19.  This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because it regularly

conducts business in this District.

20. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to: (1) 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)}2) in that
a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to Plaintift s claims occurred in this
District: and: (2) 28 11.S.C. § 1391(b)(3) in that Defendant is subject Lo personal jurisdiction

in this District.
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PARTIES

21.  Plaintif is a resident of Queens County, New York, and brings this lawsuit on
behalf of himself, as an individual, and on behalf of all other similarly situated persons in New

York.

22, Plaintiff has purchased the Roundup Products on several occasions over the past
four years in reliance on Defendant’s representations that the Roundup Products target an

enzymc supposedly tound only in plants.

23.  This representation was material to Plaintiff's decision to make the purchases.
Plaintiff would not have purchased the Roundup Products or would have purchased alternative

products in the absence of the representation.

24. At all times mentioned herein, Defendant, Monsanto Company, was and is a
Delaware corporation headquartered in St. Louis, Missouri, and a leading marketer of weed killer
through retail stores nationwide. Monsanto was and is, at all relevant times, engaged in commercial

transactions throughout the State of New York, including this judicial District, as well as internet

sales.

25.  Monsanto manufacturcs and/or causcs the manufacture of weed killer products, and
markets and distributes the products in retail stores in the State of New York and throughout the
United States. Defendant makes. markets, sells, and distributes products under various trademarks,

including the Roundup name.

Upon information and belicf, Defendant has caused harm to the general public of the

District of Columbia.



Case 2:17-cv-02216 Document 1 Filed 04/12/17 Page 6 of 23 PagelD #: 6

26. DOES | — 10 are herein sued under [fictitious names; when their true names are

known, Plaintiff will amend. Along with the named Defendant, each DO Defendant is a

proximate cause of Plaintiff’s harm.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

27.  Plaintiffs bring this suit against Monsanto for compensatory relief under New
York’s General Business Law §§ 349 and 350 based on misrepresentations and omissions
committed by Monsanto regarding Roundup. Monsanto falsely states on the Roundup label and
website that “|g|lyphosate targets an enzyme found in plants but not in people or pets,” when in

fact glyphosate targets a bacterial enzyme that is found in people and pets.

A. Worldwide Use and Effects of Glyphosate

28. On information and belief, the synthetic biocide glyphosate is, by volume, the

world’s most widely produced herbicide.

29. Glyphosate was invented by Monsanto, which began marketing the biocide in

1974 under the trade name Roundup, after DDT was banncd from agricultural usc.

30. Monsanto manufactures and distributes certain formulations of glyphosate to

farmers and other formulations of glyphosate to consumers, both under the Roundup trademark.

31. By the late 1990s, use of Roundup had surged as a result of Monsanto’s strategy of
genelically engineering seeds to grow food crops that could tolerate, and survive, high doses of
the biocide. The introduction of these genetically engineered seeds enabled farmers more easily to

control weeds on their crops.



Case 2:17-cv-02216 Document 1 Filed 04/12/17 Page 7 of 23 PagelD #: 7

32. Glyphosate functions as a biocide by inhibiting the enzyme 5-
enolpyruvylshikimate-3-phosphate (“EPSP”) synthase, disrupting the fifth of six enzymatic steps

in the shikimate pathway, which processes aromatic amino acids in certain organisms. '

[
(8]

Although humans and other mammals themselves do not have a shikimate pathway,
the shikimate pathway is present in bacteria, including beneficial bacteria that inhabit the
mammalian gut and are essential to overall health.”? EPSP is therefore “found in . . . people [and]

pets.”

34.  Just like it inhibits EPSP synthase in weeds, the active ingredient in Roundup
inhibits EPSP synthase in these human and pet gut bacteria, and just like it targets weeds, the active

ingredient in Roundup targets the human and pet gut bacteria.’

35. On information and belief, there are three routes of exposure through which

biocides enter the body—-ingestion, dermal absorption, and inhalation.

36. On information and belief, the presence of glyphosate in the human and animal gut

likely results from the ingestion of glyphosate residues on food caused by agricultural and general

environmental use of the product, including household usc by consumers who purchase retail

' Heike Hollander & Nikolaus Amrhein, The Site of the Inhibition of the Shikimate Pathway by Glysophate,

66 PLANT PHYSIOLOGY 823, {1980), available at
hitp://www plantphysiol.org/content/66/5/823 full.pdf; Glysephate: Mechanism of Action, Glyphosate Facts (June
19, 2013}, http://www glyphosate.eu/glyphosate-mechanism-action.

! Hermann, Klaus M., The Shikimale Pathway as an Entry 1o Aromatic Secondary Metabolism,

107 PLANT PHYSIOLOGY 7 (1995),
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pme/articles/PMC161158/pdf/ 1070007.pdf; Jandhyala, S.M., et al., Role of the
Normal  Gut  Microbiota, 21 WORLD J.  OF GASTROENTEROLOGY 8787  (2013),
https://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pme/articles/PMC4528021/.

* Anthony Samsel & Stephanie Sneff, Glyphosate’s Suppression of Cytochrome P450 Enzymes and Amino Acid
Biosynthesis by the Gut Microbiome: Pathways to Modern Diseases, 15(4) ENTROPY 1416 (2013).
http://Awvww.mdpi.com/1099-4300/15/4/1416/him.
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Roundup Products. Consumers may also be exposed to glyphosate via dermal absorption when
using the retail Roundup Products or contacting surfaces on which or near which glyphosate has
been sprayed. Pets may be exposed to glyphosate by ingesting grass that has been treated with

glyphosate, or contacting surfaces on which or near which glyphosate has been sprayed.

37. The wider effects of glyphosate on the human immune system are beginning to
become known. Nevertheless, this lawsuit does not seek compensation for personal injury or any
health effects of glyphosate. Instead, this lawsuit seceks compensatory and injunctive relief on
behalf of the general public in the State of New York for Monsanto’s violations of New York's

General Business Law §§ 349 and 350.

B. Monsanto’s Misrepresentation and Omission of Material Fact

38. Consumers are becoming increasingly aware of biocides in the cnvironment and

concerned about their potential cffects on people and animals.*

. 5 .
39. Monsanto is aware of these concerns,” and knows that consumers are more likely

to buy—and will pay more for-- -weed killers that they believe do not affect people and animals.

40. To sell more Roundup, and to command a high price, Monsanto markets Roundup

4 See, e.g., Glyphosate 10 be Listed under Proposition 65 as Known to the State 1o Cause Cancer, OEHHA (Mar.
28, 2017), avaiable at https://oehha.ca.goviproposition-65/crnt/glyphosate-be-  listed-under-proposition-65-
known-state-cause-cancer; Two-Thirds of Euwropeans Support Glyphosate Ban, Says Yougov Poll, THE
GUARDIAN (Apr. 11, 2016), available ai hitps://www.theguardian.com/environment/20] 6/apr/1 1/two-thirds-of-
europeans-support-ban- on-glyphosate-says-yougov-poll; Fears Over Roundup Herbicide Residues Prompt
Private Testing, WASHINGTON POST (Apr. 13, 2015), available af
https://www.washingtonpost.com/national/health-science/worries-about-an-ingredient-in-widely- used-lawn-
herbicide-after-who-report/2015/04/13/f6b0ad 18-df8a-1 1 e4-a1b8- 2¢d88bc190d2 story.html.

. See, e.g., Fric Sachs, Conversation Questions Regarding  Glyphosate, Monsanto,

http://discover. monsanto.com/posts/conversation-questions-regarding-glyphosate/ (last visited Feb. 1, 2017).
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Products with claims that their active ingredient, glyphosate, targets an enzyme found only in

plants and not in people or pets.

41. Monsanto has built Roundup’s reputation by including this representation on many
Roundup Products” labels, and by omitting the contrary fact that the enzymc targeted by glyphosate
is found in people and pets. The omission i1s consistent across the Roundup Product lines and
therefore, regardless of whether the representation appears on a specific botile of Roundup,
Monsanto is able to command higher prices, and to sell more volume, across the line of Roundup

Products.

42. Monsanto intends this claim to create the false and misleading impression among
consumers that glyphosate has no effect on people or pets, or the beneiicial bacteria found in thesr

gut biomes, despite its knowledge of evidence to the contrary.

43, Monsanto omits the material fact that peer-reviewed scientific research studies have

shown that the enzyme targeted by glyphosate in fact is present in human and animal gut bacteria.

44. Monsanto’s conduct in labeling and marketing Roundup as targeting an enzyme
found only in plants (and thercby only affecting plants, not humans or animals) deceives and/oris

likely to deceive the public.

45.  Consumers have been deceived into believing that Roundup targets an enzyme

found only in plants and not in people or pets.

46. Consumers cannot discover the true nature of Roundup from reading the label.

Should any consumer visit Monsanto's website seeking additional information, the website
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purports to include various “background materials” on glyphosate® but still does not mention that
the enzyme targeted by Roundup is present in bacteria integral to the gut and immune system of

people and pets.

47, Discovery of the true nature of Roundup requires knowledge of and access to a

laboratory for (esting or research that is not available to the average reasonable consumer.

48.  Monsanto deceptively and misleadingly conceals material facts about Roundup,

namely, that Roundup targets a bacterial enzyme found in pcople and pets.
49. Monsanto’s concealment tolls the applicable statute of limitations.

50.  To this day, Monsanto continucs to conceal, suppress, and misrepresent the true

nature of Roundup.

C. Monsanto’s Knowledge That Its Representations Are False
51.  Monsanto holds itself out to the public as a trusted expert in herbicides.”
52. Monsanto is aware of how glyphosate works on the shikimate pathway,g and on

information and belief is aware of studies showing that the shikimate pathway is present in

bacteria integral 1o the digestive systems of people and pets.

53, Monsanto therefore knows that glyphosate targets an enzyme present not only in

plants, but also in people and pets.

6 Roundup/Glyhosate Background Materials, Monsanto, http://www . monsanto.com/products/pages/roundup-safety-
background-materials.aspx.

7 See, e.g.. id.
Y.
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54, Monsanto knows what representations it makes on the labels of Roundup.

35.  Monsanto thus knew all the facts demonstrating that Roundup Products with the
representation “targets an enzyme found in plants but not in people or pets’™ were mislabeled and
[alsely advertised, and knew that a material fact was omitted from the label of all Roundup

Products.

D. Consumers’ Reliance on Monsanto’s False and Misleading Representations

50. Consumers frequently rely on label representations and information in making

purchase decisions.

57. Monsanto made false, misleading, and deceptive representations and omissions
intending for consumecrs to rcly upon these representations and omissions in purchasing

Roundup.

58. In making the false, misleading, and deceptive representations and omissions at
issue, Monsanto knew and intended that consumers would purchase Roundup when consumers

would otherwise purchase a competing product or not purchase at all.

59. Consumers are willing to pay more for a weed killer product that purports totarget
an enzyme found only in plants, and they expect that product to not target an enzyme found in, or

to affcct, people and pets.

60. In making the false, misleading, and deceptive representations and omissions at
issue, Monsanto also knew and intended that consumers would pay more for weed killer products

that do not target an enzyme found in, or affect, people and pets, furthering Monsanto’s private
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nterest of increasing sales of Roundup and decreasing the sales of competing weed killer products

that are truthfully marketed.

61. Monsanto has failed to provide adequate relicf to members of the consuming public

as of the date of the filing of this Complaint.

62.  Reasonable consumers do not expect Roundup, which Monsanto represents and
advertises as targeting “an enzyme found in plants but not in people or pets,” to target an enzyme

found in humans and animals, on which they depend for overall health.

63. Monsanto’s statements and other representations convey a series of express and
implied claims and/or omissions that Monsanto knows are material to the reasonable consumer in
making a purchasing decision, and that Monsanto intended for consumers to rely upon when

choosing to purchase Roundup.

64. Monsanto misrepresented the nature of Roundup and/or failed to adequately
disclose the fact that Roundup’s key ingredient targets an enzyme found in the gut bacteria of

people and pets, which was and is falsc, mislcading, and/or likely to deceive reasonable consumers.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

65. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in each

of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

66. This action is maintainable as a class action under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure.
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67.  The class definition(s) may depend on the information obtained throughout
discovery. Notwithstanding, at this time, Plaintiff brings this action and seeks certification of the
claims and certain issucs in this action on behalf of a Class of individuals defined as:

All persons who purchased the Roundup Products within the State of New
York from the beginning of any applicable limitations period through the date
of class certification (“the Class™).

68. Fxcluded from the Class are (1) Defendants, any entity or division in which
Defendants have a controlling interest, and their legal representatives, officers, dircclors, assigns,

and successors; and (2) the judge to whom this case is assigned and the judge’s staff,

69.  Plantiff brings the Class pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 23(a),

23(b)(1), 23(b)(2), and 23(b)(3).

70. Plaintiff reserves the right to amend the Class definitions if further information
and discovery indicate that the Class definitions should be narrowed, expanded, or otherwise

modificd.

71.  All members of the Class were and arc similarly affected by the deceptive
advertising of the Defendants, and the relief sought herein is for the benefit of Plaintiff and

members of the Class.

72.  Certification of Plaintift’s claims for class-wide treatment is appropriate
because Plaintiff can prove the clements of his claims on a class-wide basis using the same
evidence as would be used to prove those elements in individual actions alleging the same

claims.
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73.  Numerosity — Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(l). At this time.
Plaintiff does not know the exact number of the Class members. Based on the annual sales and
popularity of the Product, it is readily apparent that the number of consumers in the Class is so
large as 1o make joinder impracticable, if not impossible. Class members may be notified of the
pendency of this action by recognized, Court-approved notice dissemination methods, which may

include U.S. Mail, electronic mail, Internet postings, and/or published notice.

74. Commonality and Predominance -Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(2)
and 23(b)(3). There is a well-defined community of interest in the questions of law and fact
involved in this case. Questions of law and fact common to the members of the Class that

predominate over questions that may affect individual Class members include:

a. Whether the marketing, advertising, packaging, labeling, and other
promotional materials for the Product are deceptive and/or misleading;

b. Whether Defendants’ practices and representations related to the
marketing, labeling and sales of the Roundup Products were unfair, deceptive,
fraudulent, mislcading and/or unlawful in any respect, thereby violating New York
law;

c. Whether Defendant was unjustly enriched at the expense of the Plaintiff
and Class Members.

d. Whether Defendants® claim that “[g|lyphosate targets an cnzyme found in
plants but not in people or pets™ is true or false or likely to deceive or mislead a
rcasonable consumer;

e. Whether Defendants violated New York General Business Law § 349;

f. Whether Defendants violated New York General Business Law § 350; and
g. The nature of the relief to which Plaintifts and the Class members are
entitled.

75. Typicality - Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(3). Plaintiff’s claims are

Ltypical of those of the Class, as the claims arise from the same course of conduct by Defendants,
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and the relief sought within the Class is common to the Class members. Plaintiff, like all
members of the Class, relied on Defendants’ false and misleading representations and purchased
the Roundup Products, or paid more for the Roundup Products, than Plaintiff would have paid if
thc Roundup Products had been properly labeled, and sustained injury from Defendants’
wrongful conduct. Further, there are no defenses available to Defendant that are unique to

Plaintiff.

76.  Adequacy of Representation - Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a)(4).
Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class. Plaintiff is an adequate
representative of the Class because his interests do not conflict with the interests of the Class
members he seeks to represent, and he has retained counsel competent and experienced in both
consumer protection and class action litigation. Plaintiff and his counsel will [lairly and
adequately protect thc interests of the members of the Class. Undersigned counsel has
represented consumers in a variety of actions where they have sought to protect consumers from

fraudulent and deceptive practices.

717. Insufficiency of Separate Actions - Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)(1}.
Absent a representative class action, members of the Class would continuc to suffer the
harm described herein, for which they would have no remedy. Even if separate actions
could be brought by individual consumers, the resulling multiplicity of lawsuits would
cause undue burden and expense for both the Court and the litigants, as well as create a
risk of inconsistent rulings and adjudications that might be dispositive of the interests of
similarly situated purchascrs, substantially impeding their ability to protect their intercsts,
while establishing incompatible standards of conduct for Defendants. The proposed Class

thus satisfies the requirements of Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(]).
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78. Predominance and Superiority of Class Action. The prerequisites (o0
maintaining a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)(3) are met becausc
questions of law and fact common to each Class member predominates over any questions
affecting only individual members, and a class action is superior (o other available methods for

fairly and efficiently adjudicating the controversy.

79.  Individual joinder of the Class members is not practicable, and questions of law
and fact common to the Class predominate over any questions affecting only individual Class
members. Fach Class member has been damaged and is entitled to recovery as a result of the

violations alleged herein.

80. Moreover, because the damages suffered by individual members of the Class may
be relatively small, the expense and burden of individual litigation would make it difficult or
impossible for individual Class members to redress the wrongs done to them, while an important
public interest will be served by addressing the matter as a class action. Class action treatment
will allow those persons similarly situated to litigate their claims in the manner that is most

cfficient and economical for the parties and the judicial system.
81. Plaintiff is unaware of any ditficultics in managing this casc that should preclude
class action.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Violation of New York General Business Law § 349)

82. Plaintiff incorporaies by reference all the allegations of the preceding paragraphs

of this Complaint.
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83. Defendant, in selling Roundup Products in the State of New York, was engaged in

a consumer-oriented business practice or act.

84. Monsanto’s labeling and advertising of Roundup misrepresents, tends to mislead.

and omits material facts regarding the naturc of Roundup.

85. Monsanto has labeled and advertised Roundup as targeting “an enzyme found in
plants but not in people or pets,” and has otherwise presented an image and marketing materials

suggesting that Roundup does not target an enzyme in, or aflect, humans and animals.

86. The representations omit the truth about Roundup, namcly, that its active
ingredient, glyphosate, targets a bacterial enzyme found in humans and animals, which they

depend on for overall health.

87.  Roundup lacks the characteristics, benelits, styles and standards that Monsanto

states and implies in its labeling and advertisements.

88. These misstatements, innuendo, and omissions are material and have the tendency
to mislcad.

89. Monsanto knowingly did not sell Roundup as advertised.

90. Consumers were in fact deceived and misiead. Monsanto knew or should have

known that because of its misrepresentations, reasonable consumers would believe that Roundup
does not target a bacterial enzyme in humans and animals, which they depend on for overall

health.
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91. Becausc Monsanto misrepresents the characteristics, ingredicnts, and benefits of
Roundup; misrepresents the standard, quality, and grade of Roundup; misrepresents, fails tostate,
and uses innuendo and ambiguity in ways which tend to mislead reasonable consumers with regard
to material facts about Roundup; and advertises Roundup without the intent to sell it as advertised;

Monsanto’s labeling and marketing of Roundup violates New York General Business Law § 349.

92, Defendants have violated, and continue to violate, § 349 of the New York General

Business Law, which makes deceptive acts and practices unlawful.

93. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ violation of § 349, Plaintiff and

other members of the Class have suffered damages in an amount to be determined at trial.

94. Pursuant to New York General Business Law § 349, Plaintiff seeks an order of
this Court that includes, but is not limited to, enjoining Defendants from continuing to engage in

unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent business practices or any other act prohibited by law.

95.  Plaintiff and the other members of the Class may be irreparably harmed and/or

denied an effective and complete remedy if such an order is not granted.

96. The unfair and deceptive acts and practices of Defendants, as described above,

present a serious threat to Plaintiff and the other members of the Class.

THEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as set forth below.
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Violation of New York General Business Law § 350)

97.  Plamtiff incorporates by reference all the allegations of the preceding paragraphs

of this Complaint.

98. The acts of Defendants, as described above, and each of them, constitute

unlawful, deceptive and fraudulent business acts and practices.

99.  New York General Business [.aw § 350 provides: “Talse advertising in the conduct
of any business, tradc or commerce or in the furnishing of any service in this state is hercby

declared unlawful.”

100.  GBL § 350-a defines “false advertising,” in relevant part, as “advertising, including

labeling, of a commodity . . . if such advertising is mislcading in a material respect.”

101.  Plaintiff and the members of the Class are consumers who purchased the Roundup

Products in New York.

102.  As sellers of goods to the consuming public, Defendants are engaged in the

conduct of business, trade, or commerce within the intended ambit of GBI. § 350.

103.  Defendants’ representations made by statement, word, design, device, sound, or
any combination thereof, and also the extent to which Defendants’ advertising fails to reveal
material facts with respect to the Roundup Products, as described above, constitute false

advertising in violation of the New York General Business [.aw.

104.  Defendants’ false advertising was knowing and intentional.
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105.  Delendants’ actions led to direct, foreseeable and proximate injury to Plaintiff and

the Class.

106.  As a consequence of Delendants’ deceptive marketing scheme, Plaintiff and the
other members of the Class suffered an ascertainable loss, insofar as they would not have
purchased the Roundup Products had the truth been known, or would have purchased the
Roundup Products on different terms, or would otherwise purchase a competing product, and as

a result of Defendants’ conduct, they received a product of less value than what they paid for.

107. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants are liable to Plaintiff and the other
members of the Class for actual damages or five hundred dollars ($500) for cach sale of the
Roundup Products (whichever is greater), injunctive relief, attorneys’ fees. and the costs of this

suit.

108.  Plaintift and the other members of the Class further seek to enjoin the false

advertising described above.

109.  Absent injunctive relicf, Defendants will continue to deceptively market the

Product.

THEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as set forth below.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment on behalf of himself and the proposed

Class providing such relief as follows:
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A. Certification of the Class proposed herein under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure
23(a), (b)(1), (b)(Z), and (b)(3); appointment of Plaintiff as representative of the Class; and

appointment of his undersigned counsel as counset for the Class;

B. A declaration that Defendants are financially responsible for notifying members

of the Class of the pendency of this suit;

C. An order requiring an accounting [or, and imposition of a constructive trust upon,
all monies received by Defendants as a result of the unfair, misleading, fraudulent and unlawful

conduct alleged herein;

D. Restitution, disgorgement, rcfund, and/or other monetary damages. together
with costs and disbursements, including reasonable attorneys™ fees pursuant to the applicable

statutes and prejudgment and post-judgment interest at the maximum rate allowable by law;

E. Injunctive relief and statutory or actual damages pursuant to New York General

Business Law § 349 and common law, enjoining Defendants’” unlawful and deceptive acts;

F. Injunctive relief and statutory or actual damages pursuant to New York General

Business Law § 350;

G. Punitive damages in accordance with proof and in an amount consistent with

applicable precedent; and

H. Such further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.
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JURY TRIAL
DEMANDED

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury. Plaintiff also respectfully requests leave to

amend this Complaint to conform to the evidence, if such amendment is needed for trial.

DATED: April 12, 2017

GABRIELLI LEVITT LLP

= - N

e

MichattFGabrielli (MG-2421)
michael@gabricllilaw.com
2426 Eastchester Rd., Ste. 103
Bronx, New York 10469
Telephone: (718) 708-5322
Facsimile: (718) 708-5966

Attorneys for Plaintiff and Proposed Class
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VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEW YORK )
) ss.:

COUNTY OF QUEENS )

MARIO WASIHINGTON, being duly sworn, deposes and says that | am a Plaintiff
herein, have read this lawsuit and am familiar with the allegations, which are true to my own
knowledge, except as to those matters stated therein to be alleged on information and belief, and
as to those matters, I believe them to be true.

Attached herelo as Exhibit A are a true and correct photographs of the challenged
advertising statement, which, upon information and belief, appears on Defendant’s labels
throughout New York State.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of New York that the
foregoing is both true and correct.

A

TS .
SN
Map,@} shington

Sworn to before me
this 11" day of April, 2017.

IRIS M. GABRIELL!, ESQL
Notary Public, State of New York
Na. O2GA61716€2 .
Quelified in Nassau County ..
Commission Expires July 30,;04'1

Teve
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Eastern District of New York

MARIO WASHINGTON, individually and on behalf of
all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No.

MONSANTO COMPANY, a Delaware corporation;
DOES 1-10, inclusive,

Defendant(s)

A NS N S N W N S N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Monsanto Company
800 N Lindbergh Bivd.
Building E
St. Louis, MO 63167

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

Gabrielli Levitt LLP

2426 Eastchester Rd., Ste. 103
Bronx, NY 10469

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

DOUGLAS C. PALMER
CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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CIVIL COVER SHEET

The IS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filin,
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM,)

L (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS
Mario Washington, individually and on behalf of all others similarly Monsanto Company, a Delaware corporation; Does 1-10, inclusive
situated

JS 44 (Rev. 07/16)

and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
eptember 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Queens
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant _Foreign
(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.,
Attorneys (If Known)

(c). Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)
Gabrielli Levitt LLP f71 8) 708-5322

2426 Eastchester Road, Suite 103
Bronx, NY 10469

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an "X in One Box Only) HI. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant)
71 U.S. Government @ 3 Federal Question PTF DEF PTF DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State r. 3 O 1 Incorporated or Principal Place 04 04
of Business In This State
2 U.S. Government x4 Diversity Citizen of Another State 02 O 2 Incorporated and Principal Place as Xs
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item 11]) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a O3 0O 3 ForeignNation a6 06
Foreign Country
IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
1 CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES |
3 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY |3 625 Drug Related Seizure (3 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 O 375 False Claims Act
O 120 Marine 3 310 Airplane 3 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 [ 423 Withdrawal 0 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
0 130 Miller Act 3 315 Airplane Product Product Liability 3 690 Other 28 USC 157 3729(a))
O 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability €1 367 Heaith Care/ ) 400 State Reapportionment
0 150 Recovery of Overpayment |3 320 Assauit, Libel & Pharmaceutical R IGHT: 0 410 Antitrust
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury 7 820 Copyrights 3 430 Banks and Banking
O 151 Medicare Act 3 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability 3 830 Patent 1 450 Commerce
0 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability 3 368 Asbestos Personal O 840 Trademark 3 460 Deportation
Student Loans 3 340 Marine Injury Product 3 470 Racketeer Influenced and
(Excludes Veterans) 3 345 Marine Product Liability LA Corrupt Organizations
3 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY |0 710 Fair Labor Standards O 861 HIA (1395ff) O 480 Consumer Credit
of Veteran’s Benefits O 350 Motor Vehicle ¥ 370 Other Fraud Act O 862 Black Lung (923) O 490 Cable/Sat TV
3 160 Stockholders’ Suits O 355 Motor Vehicle 3 371 Truth in Lending 3 720 Labor/Management 0 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) | O 850 Securities/Commodities/
O 190 Other Contract Product Liability O 380 Other Personal Relations O 864 SSID Title XVI Exchange
O 195 Contract Product Liability | (3 360 Other Personal Property Damage O 740 Railway Labor Act 3 865 RSI(405(g)) X 890 Other Statutory Actions
O 196 Franchise Injury D 385 Property Damage O 751 Family and Medical 3 891 Agricultural Acts
O 362 Personal Injury - Product Liability Leave Act O 893 Environmental Matters
— Medical Malpractice — 3 790 Other Labor Litigation O 895 Freedom of Information
l REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS |0 791 Employee Retirement FEDERAL TAX SUITS Act
3 210 Land Condemnation 3 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: Income Security Act O 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff O 896 Arbitration
O 220 Foreclosure £ 441 Voting 3 463 Alien Detainee or Defendant) 3 899 Administrative Procedure
3 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 0 442 Employment 3 510 Motions to Vacate O 871 IRS—Third Party Act/Review or Appeal of
O 240 Torts to Land 3 443 Housing/ Sentence 26 USC 7609 Agency Decision
3 245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations 3 530 General B 950 Constitutionality of
3 290 All Other Real Property 3 445 Amer. w/Disabilities -] 0 535 Death Penaity IMMIGRATION State Statutes
Employment Other: 0 462 Naturalization Application
[3 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - | [ 540 Mandamus & Other |3 465 Other Immigration
Other 0 550 Civil Rights Actions
3 448 Education [} 555 Prison Condition
O 560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of
Confinement

V. ORIGIN (Piace an “X” in One Box Only)

X1 Original 2 Removed from O 3 Remanded from O 4 Reinstatedor O 5 Transferred from 3 6 Multidistrict O 8 Multidistrict
Proceeding State Court Appeliate Court Reopened Another District Litigation - Litigation -
(specify) Transfer Direct File
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do net cite jurisdictional unless diversity):

28 U.S.C. 1332(d)(2)

Brief description of cause: . .
Violations of NY General Business Law Sections 349 and 350

V1. CAUSE OF ACTION

VII. REQUESTED IN 3 CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P. JURY DEMAND: HYes MINo
VHI. RELATED CASE(S) —
IF ANY (See instructions): JUDGE DOCKET ER
DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD
04/12/2017 s/Michael J. Gabrielli
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE
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CERTIFICATION OF ARBITRATION ELIGIBILITY
Local Arbitration Rule 83.10 provides that with certain exceptions, actions seeking money damages only in an amount not in excess of $150,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, are eligible for compulsory arbitration. The amount of damages is presumed to be below the threshold amount unless a
certification to the contrary is filed.

I, Michael J. Gabriell , counsel for Piaintiff > do hereby certify that the above captioned civil action is
ineligible for compulsory arbitration for the following reason(s):

X] monetary damages sought are in excess of $150,000, exclusive of interest and costs,
the complaint seeks injunctive relief,
O the matter is otherwise ineligible for the following reason

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT - FEDERAL RULES CIVIL PROCEDURE 7.1

Identify any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation that owns 10% or more or its stocks:

RELATED CASE STATEMENT (Section VIII on the Front of this Form)

Please list all cases that are arguably related pursuant to Division of Business Rule 50.3.1 in Section VIII on the front of this form. Rule 50.3.1 (a)
provides that “A civil case is “related” to another civil case for purposes of this guideline when, because of the similarity of facts and legal issues or
because the cases arise from the same transactions or events, a substantial saving of judicial resources is likely to result from assigning both cases to the
same judge and magistrate judge.” Rule 50.3.1 (b) provides that “ A civil case shall not be deemed “related” to another civil case merely because the civil
case: (A) involves identical legal issues, or (B) involves the same parties.” Rule 50.3.1 (c) further provides that “Presumptively, and subject to the power
of 2 judge to determine otherwise pursuant to paragraph (d), civil cases shall not be deemed to be “related” unless both cases are still pending before the
court.”

NY-E DIVISION OF BUSINESS RULE 50.1(d)(2)

1) Is the civil action being filed in the Eastern District removed from a New York State Court located in Nassau or Suffolk
County: NO

2) If you answered “no” above:
a) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in Nassau or Suffolk
County? YES '

b) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in the Eastern
District? YES

If your answer to question 2 (b) is “No,” does the defendant (or a majority of the defendants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or

Suffolk County, or, in an interpleader action, does the claimant (or a majority of the claimants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau

or Suffolk County?
(Note: A corporation shall be considered a resident of the County in which it has the most significant contacts).

BAR ADMISSION

I am currently admitted in the Eastern District of New York and currently a member in good standing of the bar of this court.
Yes D No

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court?
Yes (If yes, please explain) No

I certify the accuracy of all information provided above.

”\_’//c" '
Signature:




